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North Island Hospital Project  Frequently Asked Questions 
What is the North Island Hospitals Project?  

The North Island Hospitals Project (NIHP) consists of the construction of two new hospitals on northern Vancouver Island. A new 153 bed hospital will be 
built in the Comox and a new 95 bed Campbell River Hospital will be built in Campbell River.  

What is the North Island Hospitals Project Board?  

The Project Board is a provincial government body consisting of membership from the Ministry of Health, the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure, 
Vancouver Island Health Authority, Comox Strathcona Regional Hospital District and Partnerships BC. The Board was tasked with overseeing the 
development of a business case and will also oversee the procurement and construction of the North Island Hospitals Project.  

What does the business case include?  

The business case primarily involved the development of an indicative design for both hospitals that included enough detail to more accurately assess the 
required capital investment. It also recommended that this project should be procured as a public-private partnership. The business case will serve as the 
foundation for the procurement and construction tender processes.  

What is an indicative design? 

An indicative design is drawings of a project that illustrate a possible solution that would meet the requirements of a proposal call. An indicative design 
serves several purposes including: 

• Allowing users to visualize what a design could look like; 
• Providing a basis for estimating costs; and 
• Serving as a starting point for bidders to develop their own, detailed competing designs. 
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At what stage is development of the business case and who has been involved? 

The business case was completed in December 2011. Consultations with physicians and staff began in October 2010 when work on the business case got 
underway. These consultations will continue throughout the final design and construction stages of the North Island Hospitals Project. Consultations were 
initiated with First Nations in May 2011 and follow-up information sharing will take place with Aboriginal representatives to share design principles and to 
seek further input on operational principles and amenities that are relevant for Aboriginal people during the final design stages. Engagement sessions with 
patients and family representatives will take place during the procurement phase of the project.  

Can members of the public view the business case? 

Business cases for major capital projects are not released publicly as they are part of the decision documents prepared for cabinet deliberations. Similar to 
other major projects, a capital project plan will be made publicly available. The capital project plan will include information including project objectives, the 
scope of the project, project benefits and risks associated with the project. 

What is the budget for the NIHP?  

Initial and preliminary estimates for this project indicated that the preliminary project cost will be approximately $600 million. Final costs of the project will 
be determined as part of the procurement phase. 

Where will the hospitals be built? 

The new Campbell River and District General Hospital will be built at the site of the current hospital, located on 2nd Avenue. The plan is to locate the new 
Comox Valley hospital at the intersection of Lerwick and Ryan roads in Courtenay, adjacent to North Island College. VIHA has reached an agreement in 
principle with North Island College (NIC) to build the facility on land at Comox Valley campus.  Steps are underway to finalize consultation and final approval 
required for the transfer of the land. 
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What is the timeline for construction of the two new hospitals, now that approval has been given by the government to proceed? 

The next step in the North Island Hospitals Project is the request for qualifications (RFQ) of contractors. This is an open process in which the objective is to 
determine a shortlist of qualified contractors who will be asked to submit a much more detailed proposal in the request for proposals (RFP) phase. The RFQ 
phase will take approximately three months to complete.  The RFQ was issued on June 6, 2012 and the deadline for submissions is August 8, 2012.  

The request for proposals (RFP) phase will begin after completion of the RFQ phase. The short-listed contractors (a result of the RFQ process) will be asked 
to submit their detailed proposals to construct the two new hospitals. Once the RFP process is closed, submissions will be reviewed and a recommended 
contract submitted to government for approval, after which the successful proponent will be announced. Given the significance, complexity and size of the 
North Island Hospitals Project, the RFP phase will take approximately 9 to 12 months to complete.  

• These two processes will ensure that the best qualified team is selected to build the new hospitals. 

• Construction will begin immediately after a contract is signed with the successful proponent. 

• It is anticipated that the hospitals will be built and ready for occupancy approximately 36-42 months after construction begins. 

Why did the CSRHD provide $3 million to finance the business case? Shouldn’t those funds have come from the provincial government?  

Due to the size of the project and the requirement to have greater reliability and precision in the costing estimates before funding is considered and 
approved, this business case required resources that the health authority did not have. To ensure that the detailed business case was developed, the 
directors of the Comox Strathcona Regional Hospital District (CSRHD) agreed to provide $3 million as part of their total contribution to the NIHP to kick-start 
the business case process. At the end of 2011 the CSRHD had approximately $45 million in reserve funds to apply to its portion of the project, and has a 
financial strategy in place for the remainder of its share. Had the business case not received approval from the province, VIHA would have returned these 
funds in the form of capital investment into health care service facilities in the CSRHD.  

Why is Partnerships BC involved in the process?  

Partnerships BC has extensive experience in supporting the development of business cases for projects such as the NIHP.  
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Did the business case recommend a public-private partnership (P3)?  
Yes.  Part of the business case for each public infrastructure project evaluates the various procurement options and determines which will deliver the best 
value for taxpayer dollars in the case of that particular project. For the NIHP, the public private partnership model was determined to be the best option for 
ensuring completion on time and on budget while also taking advantage of private sector innovation and expertise.  

What is a P3? 

A P3 is a long-term, performance-based contract whereby government retains control and ownership of a piece of infrastructure while transferring parts of 
the risk associated with designing, building and maintaining major projects to the private sector. The benefits of PPPs include value for money, increased 
innovation and better-managed life cycle costs. 

What services will be provided at each hospital?  

As previously stated by VIHA, the services currently available at Campbell River and St. Joseph’s will remain available at the new locations recognizing that 
there may be some changes arising from technological advances or service enhancements. Campbell River & District General Hospital will have 95 beds 
which will include Mental Health and Addictions beds. In the Comox Valley, the existing 116-bed hospital (owned by the Diocese of Victoria and operated by 
the Diocese through an affiliation agreement with VIHA) will be replaced with a new 153-bed hospital.  

The new Comox Valley Hospital will be operated by VIHA. 

With the projected Mental Health and Addictions beds to be located in the new Campbell River & District General Hospital, will psychiatric 
services, including the number of psychiatric beds currently located at St. Joseph’s General Hospital, be decreased? 

The current long-term plan is to shift the majority of the mental health and addictions beds from the Comox Valley to the new Campbell River hospital. 
Plans will continue to be developed regarding timing, phasing and the range of Mental Health and Addictions services and beds to remain at the new 
Comox Valley hospital. Plans for enhancing community-based mental health and addictions services will also need to be developed concurrently with the 
hospital plans to ensure that the emerging system better meets the needs of the North Island communities. 
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Will there be trauma services? 

There will be trauma bays in the emergency departments at each hospital site. Higher level trauma services will be implemented once patient volumes 
warrant and in conjunction with regulatory agencies such as the Provincial Health Services Authority. 

What about the 40-50 residential care spaces and other companion projects that were promised by VIHA earlier this year?  

The 40-50 new community care beds and community dialysis chairs that VIHA has committed to placing in Campbell River are companion projects and 
integral to the success of the NIHP, but are separate and distinct projects. The NIHP is the replacement of the acute care facilities.  

What kind of management/administration will there be? 

The model will be one hospital with two sites. There will be on-site management at each site. 

Will I be working at both sites? 

While the majority of staff will work at one of the two sites, there may be some staff that choose to work at both sites and some programs may have staff 
who work out of both sites. 

What will be the process for transferring staff from St. Joseph’s to VIHA? 

 
VIHA and St. Joseph’s management will begin an engagement process with the unions representing the current staff at each site with the goal of developing 
a plan for integration of St. Joseph’s staff into VIHA. As well, this process will identify how staff will be transferred into the new buildings. It is anticipated 
that this process will begin as early as Fall 2012 and will be completed at least a year in advance of the opening of the new buildings.  
 
It is likely that some support services will be transferred to the private company that will be building and operating the physical structures. Affected staff 
will be identified early in the process and in negotiation with the unions representing these staff, options and alternatives will be developed.  As is the case 
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of the Royal Jubilee Patient Care Centre in Victoria, VIHA will own the land and the buildings and all health care services will continue to be provided by the 
health authority/public sector. Medical and nursing staff will continue to be employees of VIHA.  

The new facilities will have more beds so it is anticipated that all clinical staff wanting to be transferred to the new buildings will be accommodated. In fact, 
there may be a need to recruit some new staff. 

When will we know process for transfer? 

Projected opening date of the new sites is early 2017. We will work diligently to give as much notice as possible. 
 
If this is a P3, what happens to facilities support staff?  
 
It is likely that some support services will be transferred to the private company that will be building and operating the physical structures. Affected staff 
will be identified early in the process and in negotiation with the unions representing these staff, options and alternatives will be developed.  Again, delivery 
of all health care services will be the responsibility of the health authority, and medical and nursing staff will be employees of VIHA. 

How do we ensure the acute care needs continue to be addressed, developed and supported over the time the new hospitals are built? 

It will be business as usual at the current Campbell River and St. Joseph’s hospital sites. Plans and requests for service enhancements and space allocations 
will continue to be considered as is currently done now, throughout the new hospitals construction period. As well, regular maintenance and repairs will 
continue.   

How do we support physicians and staff in planning and transition to the new hospital while assuring adequate resources to provide quality 
care at St. Joseph’s and Campbell River & District General Hospital? 

There are funds in the project budget to ensure that staff can be backfilled to work on the development of the new facilities 
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How will physicians and staff be involved in the design of the new facilities? How much has already been decided? 

There will be consultations with staff related to clinical-specific design during preparation for the RFP process. During the RFP process proponents will be 
consulting with staff and physicians. During the build phase, there will be a number of opportunities for staff and physicians to provide input regards to 
room and department design. 

Will Pastoral Care be valued and supported in the new hospital?  

Pastoral care will continue at the new Comox Valley Hospital. VIHA’s Spiritual Health program has a positive relationship with pastoral care at St. Joseph’s 
Hospital and the two groups meet regularly regarding pastoral care practice. For more information on the VIHA Spiritual Care program visit 
http://www.viha.ca/spiritual_care/ 

What does this mean for plans for a Hospice/Palliative Unit to be located on the SJGH site? 

St. Joseph’s and the Hospice Society will continue with their partnership for the development of a Hospice/Palliative Unit on the St. Joseph’s site. 

What will happen at The Views?  

The 125 complex care beds in The Views will not transfer to the new hospital.  The current plan is for The Views to remain at the St. Joseph’s site and will be 
discussed as a part of the new role for St. Joseph’s. 

Will residents have to move? 

As part of any plan to renovate The Views, a priority will be to minimize disruptions for our residents. The details regarding how residents might be 
impacted would be part of a formal plan and communicated at that time.  

What will happen to the SJGH Foundation? 

The St. Joseph’s General Hospital Foundation performs a valuable role in raising funds to support capital projects and the purchase of equipment for SJGH 
and for the Views.  The SJGH Foundation has been considering how they may continue to play a role in this important work with the move to a new 
hospital.   VIHA and the St. Joseph’s Foundation will be meeting to discuss this topic. 

http://www.viha.ca/spiritual_care/�
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What happens to the SJGH Foundation’s assets – will they stay in the community? 

The position of the Foundation has always been to honor the requests of the donors and this principle would apply to the Foundation’s assets.     

The SJGH Foundation serves both the acute care and The Views. How will this work with the new hospital? 

The Foundation has been considering their role in supporting both The Views and the hospital.  Given the transfer of acute care services to the new Comox 
Valley Hospital the Foundation will be considering the best way to continue with this acute care support.   

 

The SJGH Foundation has raised funds for specific projects, for example, Palliative and Hospice Care. What will happen to these funds? 

It is always the goal of the Foundation to honor the request of donors giving to specific projects.  In this example designated funds for Palliative and Hospice 
Care would be used to support this specific program.    

What will be the process to explore a new role for St. Joseph’s? 

There are many exciting possibilities for a new role for St Joseph’s. Discussions will start with the Board of Directors and the Diocese of Victoria.  Further 
discussions and planning will involve staff, physicians, members of the community, and other agencies. 


